
1 

December 16, 2025 
Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda 

1. Roll Call
2. Public Comment
3. Consent Items (Attachments, VOTE)

a. October 2025 minutes - pg. 2
b. October 2025 financials - pg. 6
c. November 2025 financials - pg. 11
d. Auxiliary Board new members - pg. 16

4. President’s Report
a. Dashboard – pg. 17
b. Education - pg. 18
c. NYS Regents update - pg. 19

5. Information Items
a. Staff Reports (Attachments)

i. Director’s Report - pg. 20
ii. Adult Report - pg. 21
iii. Teen Report - pg. 22
iv. Children’s Report - pg. 23

b. Auxiliary Board
6. Board Discussion (Attachments)

a. Building Committee
i. Bathroom Renovation (Update) – pg. 24

b. Development Committee – pg. 25
c. Heritage Committee – (Handout, VOTE) pg. 27
d. Nominating Committee – (Handout, VOTE) pg. 28

7. Mission Moments – pg. 29
8. New Business
9. Executive Session

Next meeting dates:  Tuesday, January 27 – 7:30 pm 

Annual Meeting: Thursday, February 5 - 7:00 pm 



 

2 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Minutes of the October 28, 2025 

RFRR Board Meeting 
 

Trustees: Lina Eroh, Georgia Dyer, Katie Vernace, Jan Kelsey, Matt Anderson, Val 
Chuebon, Jackie Cohen, Nicole Cunningham, Jennifer McArdle, Jill MacVicar, Diane 
Martin, Emilie Reddoch, Kathleen Riegelhaupt, Jaclyn Shanahan, Duncan Sibson, Jim 
Steinthal, Emily Tisdale, Meredythe Ryan, Bettina Scott Funk 
 
Lina Eroh began the meeting at 7:31. Lina welcomed Josh Nathan, the liaison from the 
City Council.   
 
Consent Agenda 
The consent agenda contained the minutes of the September 2025 board meeting and 
the September 2025 financial statement.  Nicole made a motion to accept the consent 
agenda.  Katie seconded.  All approved. 
 
President’s Report 
Lina praised the board members for their attendance record and contributions to the  
annual fund.  She reminded members about the trustee education requirements.  A list 
of education opportunities was included in the meeting packet.  Several members still 
need to complete the conflict of interest form.  Lina then provided the board with an 
update on the usage issues in the Discovery Zone.  Toys have been returned to the 
shelves and new guidelines for expectations for usage of and behavior in the Discovery 
Zone have been posted on the door.  The staff will be doing more walk-throughs.  A 
discussion ensued about possible ways to improve the usage of the space.  Patrons not 
cleaning up after play is the biggest problem.  Various options such as patrons signing 
in when using the room; hiring an additional part-time employee to monitor the space; 
making the space a no cell phone zone; and sending a reminder about usage 
expectations to library friends were discussed.  It was suggested that the “clean up 
song” be played in the room at specific internals as a reminder. 
 
Lina presented the proposed schedule of the board meeting for 2026.  Jan moved to 
approve the schedule.  Nicole seconded.  All approved.  Lina then presented the 
proposed schedule of holiday closures for 2026.  Georgia moved to approve the 
schedule.  Matt seconded.  All approved. 
 
 
 
 



 

3 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Staff Reports 
 
Director’s Report 
Chris reminded the board that the budget meeting with the city council will be held on 
November 12 at 6:30 at City Hall.  He requested that as many board members as 
possible attend to support the library’s budgetary request.  He has met with the school 
superintendent and high school principal about partnerships.  WLS has a budget 
shortfall.  The tech materials that we get from them will be reduced.  Hoopla will go 
down to 5 borrows and Canopy will go down to 30 tickets.  The library could buy its own 
access to these services if we want to increase possible usage.  Chris presented the 3rd 
quarter statistics.  Circulation continues to grow driven by digital usage.  Door count is 
slightly behind last year because there have been fewer programs this year.  Teen 
program attendance is up. 
 
Adult Services 
Catherine reported that there were nine submissions to the spooky writing program.  
The embroidery projects from take and make are on display in the library.  The mah jong 
group is full.  The medicare information program was popular. 
 
Teen Services 
Catherine reported that teen attendance at programs continues to be strong.  The 
babysitting class was very popular and will be offered again.  Twenty-five attended the 
Halloween murder mystery party.  Sarah met with the new high school librarian about 
collaboration.  
 
Children’s Services 
Catherine reported that the spooky animal program was very successful with forty 
attending.  Lisa is doing Cooking with Kids.  The program is so popular that she will be 
doubling in January.  The library has acquired 3 American Girl doll kits that can be 
checked out. 
 
Board Reports 
 
Auxiliary Board 
Meredyth reported that Casino Night will be held on November 8.  The walk-through was 
done this week.  The fundraising goal is $70,000.  Three hundred and fifty people have 
signed up.  There will be a big new class of members of the Auxiliary Board in January.   
They are switching to 3 co-chairs for Novel Night. 



 

4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Building Committee 
Emilie reported that 3 bids for the bathroom renovation have been received and are 
being reviewed.  She asked the board how the committee should move forward since 
there was no November board meeting.  It was suggested that the Building Committee 
submit their recommendation to the Executive Committee for approval.  Matt moved 
that the Building Committee submit their recommendation for a contractor for the 
bathroom project not to exceed $120,000 to the Executive Committee for approval.  
Jackie seconded.  All approved. 
 
Development Committee 
Georgia reported that the annual campaign had raised $220,000 so far.  Chris will 
update the list of donors and Georgia will share it with the board again.   
 
Heritage Committee 
Jan requested suggestions for the recipient of the Mayor’s Award at the Annual Meeting 
in February.  Several names were mentioned. 
 
Nominating Committee 
Jaclyn presented the slate of two candidates for the board: Joseph Lorono, Jr. and John 
Cocke. 
Jim moved to approve the slate.  Nicole seconded.  All approved. 
 
Policy Committee 
Jim reported that he and Chris had met with the Public Safety Commissioner.  
Amendments have been made to the emergency response policy rather than creating a 
new policy regarding law enforcement activity in the library.  Emilie moved to approve 
the amendments to the emergency response policy.  Jaclyn seconded.  All approved.  
Jim then presented an amendment to the Cardholder and Borrowing Policy which 
covers new circulating items, their loan periods and fines.  Jan moved that the 
amendment to the Cardholders and Borrowing Policy be approved.  Jaclyn seconded.  
All approved. 
 
Mission Moments 
Chris reminded the board about the upcoming Friends Open House on December 6.  
Upcoming programs include a talk on Mel Blanc, decluttering done right and French 
basics for teens. 
 
 



 

5 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Lina called for a motion to have the board go into executive session.  Jennifer so 
moved.  Emilie seconded.  The board went into executive session at 9:00. The board 
came out of executive session at 9:35.  Jennifer moved that the board approve 
management compensation as discussed in executive session.  George seconded.  All 
approved. 
 
There being no further business, Lina called for a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Jan 
so moved and Matt seconded.  All approved.  The meeting was adjourned at 9:36. 
 
Action : The Board approve the October meeting minutes 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

6 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
October Financials 

 
Income is showing the good progress on the Annual Campaign so far. 

For materials, A/V is showing negative, as we have written off old uncleared Midwest 
Tape checks. They were funds that we sent, but the checks were never deposited. We 
may have had a credit on the account, or an order change, and so Stacy did a review of 
the books and cleared off any checks older than 6 months. In periodicals, the line shows 
the expense of the three new tablets, which we are encouraging people to use. Many 
magazines have gone out of print, and these tablets give digital access to the content. 
Librarians have been showing people how to use them - they were selected due to the 
screen size to best mimic a printed magazine. 

Not a lot to note in library operations. 

In building operations, we received a refund for a duplicate payment on the power bill. 
It's still ahead of budget due to rate increases in the municipal power program, where 
we get our power through the City of Rye. 

In personnel, salaries are ahead of budget, due to the new building manager and the 
maternity coverage that was needed. While we do receive funds for part of the 
employee leave, we are not compensated for leave not covered by the NYS leave policy. 
Retirement will be coming in slightly under budget. Payroll services are ahead of budget, 
due to the need to mail paper checks and generally increasing prices. We are 
investigating new options for payroll to reduce that fee. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Action : The Board accept the October financial statements 
 

 

 



Current Month 2025 YTD 2025 YTD 2025
2025 Actual Budget Budget

Income
City of Rye -$                     1,427,000$        1,427,000$          1,427,000$        
Annual Campaign 41,740$              239,922$           225,000$             270,000$           
Miscellaneous Income 2,268$                25,356$              29,167$                35,000$              
Osborn Branch Library 3,957$                41,723$              44,222$                53,066$              
Auxiliary Board Transfer -$                     -$                     -$                      80,000$              
Endowment Transfer -$                     -$                     -$                      110,000$           
 47,965$              1,734,001$        1,725,388$          1,975,066$        

Expense
Library Materials
Books 8,062$                83,689$              75,271$                90,325$              
Audio Visual (157)$                  27,416$              20,417$                24,500$              
Periodicals 2,079$                7,538$                11,500$                13,800$              
Programs 1,801$                9,225$                11,250$                13,500$              
Ebooks/ Binding 5,703$                24,079$              34,167$                41,000$              

17,488$              151,947$           152,604$             183,125$           

Library Operations
Supplies 2,749$                17,886$              12,725$                15,270$              
Equipment & Systems - New -$                     -$                     3,333$                  4,000$                
Equipment & Systems - Maintenance -$                     -$                     3,750$                  4,500$                
Automated Systems 1,725$                94,128$              73,542$                88,250$              
Telephone 28$                      5,650$                5,833$                  7,000$                
Postage 974$                    8,654$                8,333$                  10,000$              
Printing & Publicity 1,407$                24,605$              25,000$                30,000$              
Auditing -$                     23,222$              20,833$                25,000$              
Legal Services -$                     325$                    1,667$                  2,000$                
Interest -$                     -$                     -$                      -$                     
Transfer to Designated Account -$                     -$                     -$                      -$                     
Miscellaneous 933$                    11,398$              6,500$                  7,800$                

7,816$                185,868$           161,517$             193,820$           

Building Operations
Heat 209$                    19,421$              20,833$                25,000$              
Light & Power (880)$                  33,543$              28,750$                34,500$              
Water & Sewer 332$                    8,908$                8,333$                  10,000$              
Fixtures, Furnishings & Equipment -$                     8,478$                4,167$                  5,000$                
Building Supplies 1,115$                10,944$              10,000$                12,000$              
Contracted Services 8,281$                48,276$              60,000$                72,000$              
Repairs & Maintenance 875$                    5,354$                15,000$                18,000$              
Insurance -$                     31,800$              30,063$                36,076$              
Capital Projects Fund Transfer -$                     100,000$           -$                      -$                     
Miscellaneous -$                     400$                    -$                      -$                     

9,932$                267,124$           177,147$             212,576$           

Personnel
Salaries 87,500$              919,618$           889,218$             1,067,061$        
Social Security 7,833$                68,990$              68,025$                81,630$              
Retirement -$                     -$                     105,524$             126,629$           
Medical Insurance 6,453$                55,790$              66,517$                79,820$              
Other Insurance -$                     419$                    13,333$                16,000$              
Payroll Services 1,057$                8,362$                5,833$                  7,000$                
Staff Development 384$                    4,307$                2,500$                  3,000$                
Miscellaneous -$                     -$                     -$                      
 103,227$           1,057,486$        1,150,950$          1,381,140$        

Total Income 47,965$              1,734,001$        1,725,388$          1,975,066$        
Total Expense 138,463$           1,662,426$        1,642,218$          1,970,661$        
Net Receipts (Expense) (90,498)$            71,575$              83,171$                4,405$                

Rye Free Reading Room
Income and Expense Report

For 10 Months Ending October 31, 2025



Donations to the Current Annual Campaign 2023 2024 2025

Donations received & deposited in JAN 32,982         3,137          18,105        
FEB 1,446           1,255          14,900        

MAR 2,953           6,143          2,295          
APR 4,214           15,077        2,279          

MAY 2,689           3,311          52,865        
JUN 1,736           7,783          11,260        
JUL 9,500           69,110        53,367        

AUG 1,032           10,330        6,509          
SEP 16,056         9,775          15,672        
OCT 134,064       32,760        41,740        
NOV 35,114         76,764        
DEC 64,832         87,511        

Total 306,618       322,956      218,992      

Donations to Previous or Subsequent  Annual Campaigns
Donations to prior  Annual Campaigns 30,883         12,738        20,931        
Donations to the subsequent  Annual Campaign 0 0 -               
Sub-total 30,883         12,738        20,931        

Rye Free Reading Room
Annual Campaign
October 2025  YTD



Endowment Inflows/Outflows: YTD 2025 YTD 2024 YTD 2023 YTD 2022 YTD 2021
Beg of Period (Market Value) 2,221,126 2,160,398 2,109,492 2,388,851 2,188,828
Expenses (11,596) (15,538) (14,636) (14,834)                 (15,674)                 
Transfer to/from Other Funds 0 (101,387) (105,000) (101,616)               (95,000)                 
Interest & Dividend Income 35,120 60,868 53,480 57,746 63,379
Appreciation 159,119 116,785 117,063 (220,654)               247,318                
End of Period Bal (Market Value) 2,403,768 2,221,126 2,160,398 2,109,492 2,388,851

Endowment Performance 8.22% 7.50% 7.39% -7.44% 13.48%
Return of S&P 500 17.52% 25.02% 26.29% -18.11% 28.71%
Return of Barclays Bloomberg Aggregate Bond Index 6.80% 1.25% 5.53% -13.01% -1.54%

Silvercrest: YTD 2025 YTD 2024 YTD 2023 YTD 2022 YTD 2021
Cash & Equivalents 4% 94,128 111,218 (27,006) 29,727 12,815
Fixed Income 39% 830,002 669,740 760,448 775,964 884,363
Equities 51% 1,103,506 1,157,022 1,166,785 1,046,548 1,170,444
Gold 4% 82,602 24,213 19,117 16,964 17,096
Other 2% 43,954 31,358 30,573 46,723 71,182
Silvercrest Total 100% 2,154,191 1,993,551 1,949,918 1,915,926 2,155,900

Endowment Breakdown at: Permanently Temp Restricted Total
YTD 2025 Restricted & Board Designated

Shea 41,680 65,544 107,224
Flores 76,650 3,859 80,509
Balf 27,390 34,455 61,845
Silvercrest 745,086 1,409,105 2,154,191

890,806$              1,512,963 2,403,769

Rye Free Reading Room
Endowment Report

October 2025



Unrestricted Temp. Restricted Endowment and

(Operating) (Designated) Board Restricted Combined

Income

City of Rye 1,427,000$                     -$                                 -$                                 1,427,000$                     

Annual Campaign 239,922                           0 0 239,922                           

Contribution -                                   209,547 0 209,547                           

Grants -                                   0 0 -                                   

Osborn Branch Library 41,723                             0 0 41,723                             

Income from Invested and Equity -                                   3,988 35,120 39,108                             

Miscellaneous 25,356                             19,637 0 44,993                             

Transfer: Auxiliary to Operating -                                   0 0 -                                   

Transfer: Operating to Designated -                                   0 0 -                                   

Transfer: Operating to Cap Projects -100,000 100,000 0 -                                   

 1,634,001 333,172 35,120 2,002,293

Transfer: Auxiliary to Operating 0 0 0 -                                   

Transfer: Endowment to Operating 0 0 0 -                                   

Appreciation/Depreciation 0 159,119 159,119                           

Total Funds 1,634,001 333,172 194,239 2,161,412

Expense

Library Materials

Books 83,689 4,667 0 88,356                             

Audio Visual 27,416 0 0 27,416                             

Periodicals 7,538 2,000 0 9,538                               

Programs 9,225 135,479 0 144,704                           

Online Resources 24,079 0 0 24,079                             

Miscellaneous 0 0 0 -                                   

 151,947 142,146 0 294,093

Library Operations

Supplies 17,886 780 0 18,666                             

Equipment & Systems - New 0 0 0 -                                   

Equipment & Systems - Maintenance 0 0 0 -                                   

Automated Systems 94,128 1,272 0 95,400                             

Telephone 5,650 0 0 5,650                               

Postage 8,654 0 0 8,654                               

Printing & Publicity 24,605 2,271 0 26,876                             

Auditing 23,222 0 0 23,222                             

Interest 0 0 0 -                                   

Legal Services 325 0 0 325                                  

Miscellaneous 11,398 0 0 11,398                             

 185,868 4,323 0 190,191

Building Operations

Heat 19,421 0 0 19,421                             

Light & Power 33,543 0 0 33,543                             

Water & Sewer 8,908 0 0 8,908                               

Fixtures, Furnishings & Equipment 8,478 55,751 0 64,229                             

Building Supplies 10,944 0 0 10,944                             

Contracted Services 48,276 38,250 0 86,526                             

Repairs & Maintenance 5,354 33,140 0 38,494                             

Insurance 31,800 0 0 31,800                             

Miscellaneous 400 1,125 11,596 13,121                             

 167,124 128,266 11,596 306,986

Personnel

Salaries 919,618 0 0 919,618                           

Social Security 68,990 0 0 68,990                             

Retirement 0 0 0 -                                   

Medical Insurance 55,790 0 0 55,790                             

Other Insurance 419 0 0 419                                  

Payroll Services 8,362 0 0 8,362                               

Staff Development 4,307 0 0 4,307                               

Miscellaneous 0 0 0 -                                   

 1,057,486 0 0 1,057,486

Total Expense 1,562,426 274,735 11,596 1,848,757

Net Receipts/Expenses 71,575 58,437 182,643 312,655

Prior Year Funds 273,266 328,664 2,109,492 2,711,422

Balance 344,842 387,101 2,292,134 3,024,077

Rye Free Reading Room- Combined Report

For 10 Months Ending October 31, 2025



 

11 
 

 

 

 

November Financials 
 

Income shows the annual campaign results so far.  

Misc income is slightly behind budget, but the difference is covered by the annual 
campaign performance.  

Materials are slightly behind budget, but that's the nature of the ordering cycle. 

In library operations, we received a refund on a double payment from our donor 
software, which is why a credit shows on the line.  

In building operations, the contracted services line is lower than budget, as we had 
switched from the cleaning company to having a full time building manager. That is why 
salaries are over budget. With the capital projects fund transfer backed out, the building 
operations is under budget. Insurance is ahead of budget, as workers comp was slightly 
ahead of estimates. We should see a refund of some portion in the new year.  

In personnel, salaries are ahead of budget, due to the new building manager and the 
maternity coverage that was needed. While we do receive funds for part of the 
employee leave, we are not compensated for leave not covered by the NYS leave policy. 
Retirement will be coming in slightly under budget. Payroll services are ahead of budget, 
due to the need to mail paper checks and generally increasing prices. We are 
investigating new options for payroll to reduce that fee. 

 
 
 
 
 
Action : The Board accept the November financial statements 
 

 

 

 



Current Month 2025 YTD 2025 YTD 2025
2025 Actual Budget Budget

Income
City of Rye -$                     1,427,000$        1,427,000$          1,427,000$        
Annual Campaign 55,613$              295,535$           247,500$             270,000$           
Miscellaneous Income 1,224$                26,579$              32,083$                35,000$              
Osborn Branch Library 5,394$                47,117$              48,644$                53,066$              
Auxiliary Board Transfer -$                     -$                     -$                      80,000$              
Endowment Transfer -$                     -$                     -$                      110,000$           
 62,231$              1,796,231$        1,755,227$          1,975,066$        

Expense
Library Materials
Books 5,080$                88,770$              82,798$                90,325$              
Audio Visual 244$                    27,660$              22,458$                24,500$              
Periodicals 304$                    7,842$                12,650$                13,800$              
Programs 1,672$                10,898$              12,375$                13,500$              
Ebooks/ Binding -$                     24,079$              37,583$                41,000$              

7,300$                159,249$           167,865$             183,125$           

Library Operations
Supplies 850$                    18,737$              13,998$                15,270$              
Equipment & Systems - New -$                     -$                     3,667$                  4,000$                
Equipment & Systems - Maintenance -$                     -$                     4,125$                  4,500$                
Automated Systems (4,867)$               89,262$              80,896$                88,250$              
Telephone 568$                    6,218$                6,417$                  7,000$                
Postage 956$                    9,611$                9,167$                  10,000$              
Printing & Publicity 1,132$                25,737$              27,500$                30,000$              
Auditing -$                     23,222$              22,917$                25,000$              
Legal Services -$                     325$                    1,833$                  2,000$                
Interest -$                     -$                     -$                      -$                     
Transfer to Designated Account -$                     -$                     -$                      -$                     
Miscellaneous 1,290$                12,688$              7,150$                  7,800$                

(71)$                     185,799$           177,668$             193,820$           

Building Operations
Heat -$                     19,421$              22,917$                25,000$              
Light & Power 3,186$                36,729$              31,625$                34,500$              
Water & Sewer 296$                    9,204$                9,167$                  10,000$              
Fixtures, Furnishings & Equipment -$                     8,478$                4,583$                  5,000$                
Building Supplies 1,240$                12,184$              11,000$                12,000$              
Contracted Services 1,585$                49,861$              66,000$                72,000$              
Repairs & Maintenance 1,885$                8,114$                16,500$                18,000$              
Insurance 7,604$                39,404$              33,070$                36,076$              
Capital Projects Fund Transfer -$                     100,000$           -$                      -$                     
Miscellaneous -$                     400$                    -$                      -$                     

15,796$              283,795$           194,861$             212,576$           

Personnel
Salaries 88,847$              1,008,466$        978,139$             1,067,061$        
Social Security 6,583$                75,574$              74,828$                81,630$              
Retirement -$                     -$                     116,077$             126,629$           
Medical Insurance 6,308$                62,098$              73,168$                79,820$              
Other Insurance -$                     419$                    14,667$                16,000$              
Payroll Services 739$                    9,101$                6,417$                  7,000$                
Staff Development 55$                      4,362$                2,750$                  3,000$                
Miscellaneous -$                     -$                     -$                      
 102,532$           1,160,020$        1,266,045$          1,381,140$        

Total Income 62,231$              1,796,231$        1,755,227$          1,975,066$        
Total Expense 125,557$           1,788,864$        1,806,439$          1,970,661$        
Net Receipts (Expense) (63,327)$            7,367$                (51,212)$              4,405$                

Rye Free Reading Room
Income and Expense Report

For 11 Months Ending November 30, 2025



Donations to the Current Annual Campaign 2023 2024 2025

Donations received & deposited in JAN 32,982         3,137          18,105        
FEB 1,446           1,255          14,900        

MAR 2,953           6,143          2,295          
APR 4,214           15,077        2,279          

MAY 2,689           3,311          52,865        
JUN 1,736           7,783          11,260        
JUL 9,500           69,110        53,367        

AUG 1,032           10,330        6,509          
SEP 16,056         9,775          15,672        
OCT 134,064       32,760        41,740        
NOV 35,114         76,764        55,613        
DEC 64,832         87,511        

Total 306,618       322,956      274,605      

Donations to Previous or Subsequent  Annual Campaigns
Donations to prior  Annual Campaigns 30,883         12,738        20,931        
Donations to the subsequent  Annual Campaign 0 0 -               
Sub-total 30,883         12,738        20,931        

Rye Free Reading Room
Annual Campaign

November 2025  YTD



Endowment Inflows/Outflows: YTD 2025 YTD 2024 YTD 2023 YTD 2022 YTD 2021
Beg of Period (Market Value) 2,221,126 2,160,398 2,109,492 2,388,851 2,188,828
Expenses (15,603) (15,538) (14,636) (14,834)                 (15,674)                 
Transfer to/from Other Funds 0 (101,387) (105,000) (101,616)               (95,000)                 
Interest & Dividend Income 46,808 60,868 53,480 57,746 63,379
Appreciation 177,114 116,785 117,063 (220,654)               247,318                
End of Period Bal (Market Value) 2,429,445 2,221,126 2,160,398 2,109,492 2,388,851

Endowment Performance 9.38% 7.50% 7.39% -7.44% 13.48%
Return of S&P 500 17.81% 25.02% 26.29% -18.11% 28.71%
Return of Barclays Bloomberg Aggregate Bond Index 7.46% 1.25% 5.53% -13.01% -1.54%

Silvercrest: YTD 2025 YTD 2024 YTD 2023 YTD 2022 YTD 2021
Cash & Equivalents 3% 69,422 111,218 (27,006) 29,727 12,815
Fixed Income 38% 831,795 669,740 760,448 775,964 884,363
Equities 53% 1,147,297 1,157,022 1,166,785 1,046,548 1,170,444
Gold 4% 84,578 24,213 19,117 16,964 17,096
Other 2% 45,361 31,358 30,573 46,723 71,182
Silvercrest Total 100% 2,178,453 1,993,551 1,949,918 1,915,926 2,155,900

Endowment Breakdown at: Permanently Temp Restricted Total
YTD 2025 Restricted & Board Designated

Shea 41,680 65,964 107,644
Flores 76,650 4,603 81,253
Balf 27,390 34,707 62,097
Silvercrest 745,086 1,433,367 2,178,453

890,806$              1,538,640 2,429,446

Rye Free Reading Room
Endowment Report

November 2025



Unrestricted Temp. Restricted Endowment and

(Operating) (Designated) Board Restricted Combined

Income

City of Rye 1,427,000$        -$                              -$                              1,427,000$        

Annual Campaign 295,535              0 0 295,535              

Contribution -                      267,192 0 267,192              

Grants -                      0 0 -                      

Osborn Branch Library 47,117                0 0 47,117                

Income from Invested and Equity -                      3,988 46,808 50,796                

Miscellaneous 26,579                19,637 0 46,216                

Transfer: Auxiliary to Operating -                      0 0 -                      

Transfer: Operating to Designated -                      0 0 -                      

Transfer: Operating to Cap Projects -100,000 100,000 0 -                      

 1,696,231 390,817 46,808 2,133,856

Transfer: Auxiliary to Operating 0 0 0 -                      

Transfer: Endowment to Operating 0 0 0 -                      

Appreciation/Depreciation 0 177,114 177,114              

Total Funds 1,696,231 390,817 223,923 2,310,971

Expense

Library Materials

Books 88,770 4,667 0 93,437                

Audio Visual 27,660 0 0 27,660                

Periodicals 7,842 2,000 0 9,842                  

Programs 10,898 162,876 0 173,774              

Online Resources 24,079 0 0 24,079                

Miscellaneous 0 0 0 -                      

 159,249 169,543 0 328,792

Library Operations

Supplies 18,737 780 0 19,517                

Equipment & Systems - New 0 0 0 -                      

Equipment & Systems - Maintenance 0 0 0 -                      

Automated Systems 89,262 1,272 0 90,534                

Telephone 6,218 0 0 6,218                  

Postage 9,611 0 0 9,611                  

Printing & Publicity 25,737 2,271 0 28,008                

Auditing 23,222 0 0 23,222                

Interest 0 0 0 -                      

Legal Services 325 0 0 325                     

Miscellaneous 12,688 0 0 12,688                

 185,799 4,323 0 190,122

Building Operations

Heat 19,421 0 0 19,421                

Light & Power 36,729 0 0 36,729                

Water & Sewer 9,204 0 0 9,204                  

Fixtures, Furnishings & Equipment 8,478 58,899 0 67,377                

Building Supplies 12,184 0 0 12,184                

Contracted Services 49,861 38,250 0 88,111                

Repairs & Maintenance 8,114 33,140 0 41,254                

Insurance 39,404 0 0 39,404                

Miscellaneous 400 1,125 15,603 17,128                

 183,795 131,414 15,603 330,812

Personnel

Salaries 1,008,466 0 0 1,008,466          

Social Security 75,574 0 0 75,574                

Retirement 0 0 0 -                      

Medical Insurance 62,098 0 0 62,098                

Other Insurance 419 0 0 419                     

Payroll Services 9,101 0 0 9,101                  

Staff Development 4,362 0 0 4,362                  

Miscellaneous 0 0 0 -                      

 1,160,020 0 0 1,160,020

Total Expense 1,688,864 305,280 15,603 2,009,747

Net Receipts/Expenses 7,367 85,537 208,320 301,224

Prior Year Funds 273,266 328,664 2,109,492 2,711,422

Balance 280,634 414,201 2,317,811 3,012,646

Rye Free Reading Room- Combined Report

For 11 Months Ending November 30, 2025



 

16 
 

 

 

 

New Auxiliary Board Members 

At the November 12th Auxiliary Board meeting, the members approved 12 new 
members, beginning their terms at the January 2026 meeting. The Board of Trustees 
must approve the new members as well. 
 
The new members are Blair Benedict, Marie Berrodin, Samantha Bruton, Emily Filangieri, 
Amanda Hamilton, Hanna Jamar, Brittany Kerr, Rebecca McNicol, Nataile Stevens, 
Nicole Weil, Shannon Westfall, and Elizabeth Young.  
 
 
 

Action : The Board approve the new Auxiliary Board members 
 

 

 

  



Trustee Attendance Trustee Attendance

Attended Excused Absent Virtual
March 17 3 2 0
May 16 3 0 2
June 15 3 1 2
September 16 4 0 0
October
December
January
February

Trustee Committees

Executive Heritage

Lina Eroh (Chair), Kirstin Bucci, Georgia Dyer Jan Kelsey (Chair)

Jan Kelsey,  Katie Vernance

Development

Building Georgia Dyer (Chair) Val Chuebon

Emilie Reddoch (Chair), JIll Macvicar, Diane Martin, Duncan Sibson, Jim Steinthal

Kathleen Riegelhaupt, Jim Steinthal Emily Tisdale

Finance Nominating

Katie Vernance (Chair), Kirstin Bucci Jaclyn Shanahan (Chair), Diane Martin

Val Chuebon, Kathleen Riegelhaupt Emilie Reddoch, Emily Tisdale

Strategic Planning Policy

Nicole Cunningham (Chair), Matt Anderson, Jim Steinthal (Chair), Jackie Cohen

Kathleen Riegelhaupt, Duncan Sibson Jen McArdle

Conflict of Interest Trustee Education Trustee Giving Sexual Harrassment

Yes 19 Yes 7 Yes 15 Yes 13

No 1 No 13 No 5 No 7



 

18 
 

 

 

 

Trustee Education   

Trustees are required to complete an annual sexual harassment prevention training. 
You may credit any interactive sexual harassment prevention training course taken this 
year to fulfill this requirement. Contact Chris to self-attest, or submit a certificate of 
completion. Please note this training does not count towards the 2 hour continuing 
education requirement.  
 
NYC Sexual Harassment Prevention Training - 
https://www.nyc.gov/site/cchr/law/sexual-harassment-training.page 
 
On demand opportunities for 2025 
 
Pre-recorded Education Opportunities for 2025 

• Pre-recorded webinars from New York State available at the link below.  
o https://www.nysl.nysed.gov/libdev/trustees/webinars.htm 

• Pre-recorded videos from Trustee Handbook Club discussion series from the Mid 
Hudson Library System: 

o https://youtube.com/playlist?list=PLd_RtTwqkH2bNgVIcb1pWaTSa7dZRf
PbJ&feature=shared 

• Pre-recorded videos from Trustee Handbook Club discussion series from 
WebJunction 

o https://www.nysl.nysed.gov/libdev/webjunction/index.html 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.nyc.gov/site/cchr/law/sexual-harassment-training.page


 

19 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

New York State Library Board of Regents 
 
The Commissioner of Education proposes to amend paragraph (4) of subdivision (b) of 
section 90.2 of the Regulations of the Commissioner of Education relating to library 
policies. It is anticipated that the proposed amendment will be presented for permanent 
adoption at the March 26 Regents meeting, after publication of the proposed 
amendment in the State Register and expiration of the 60-day public comment period 
required under the State Administrative Procedure Act. If adopted at the March 26 
meeting, the proposed rule will become effective on March 25, 2026. 
  
Communications regarding the proposed action may be submitted to Michael 
Mastroianni, Office of Cultural Education, 222 Madison Avenue, Albany, NY 12230 
(REGCOMMENTS@nysed.gov). Comments on the proposed rule must be received by 
the State Education Department on or before January 20, 2026. 
  
AMENDMENT OF THE REGULATIONS OF THE COMMISSIONER OF EDUCATION 
Pursuant to sections 207, 215, and 254 of the Education Law 
  
1. Paragraph (4) of subdivision (b) of section 90.2 of the Regulations of the 
Commissioner of Education is amended to read as follows: 
  
(4) has board-approved written policies for the operation of the library, which shall be 
reviewed and updated at least once every five years or earlier if required by law[;]. 
 
In addition to any other policies required by law, on or before January 1, 2027, such 
board-approved written policies shall include: 

(i) external policies related to: 
(a) the selection of library materials and reconsideration of such selection; 
(b) public usage of library space and meeting rooms; 
(c) codes of conduct; and 
(d) confidentiality of library records; and 

(ii) internal library policies related to: 
(a) personnel policies that ensure consistent staff management and fair 
employment practices; 
(b) disaster preparedness; and 
(c) financial control policies that fulfill the legal and fiduciary 
responsibilities of the governing body and promote fiscal oversight, 
accountability, and sustainable management. 

 

mailto:REGCOMMENTS@nysed.gov


 

20 
 

 

 

 

Director’s Report 

 
LIBRARY OPERATIONS: 

• Budget 
o Presented 2026 Budget at City Budget workshop 

• Strategic Planning 
o Drafted patron journey for new communications platform 
o Discussed high school partnership opportunities with Principal Hara 
 

FUNDRAISING, OUTREACH & COMMUNITY RELATIONS: 
• Annual Campaign 

o Sent thank you notes to library Friends 
• Community Relations 

o Hosted Spelling Bee 
o Participated in Season of Giving with the Rye Historical Society 
o Hosted Friends of the Library Holiday Open House 

• Fundraising 
o Hosted 2025 Casino Night 

 
BUILDING & GROUNDS: 

• Finalized contractor for bathroom renovation 
• Started NYS construction grant project to upgrade alarm and fire systems 
• Contacted HVAC companies for maintenance proposals 

 
STAFF & PERSONNEL 

• Reviewed updated emergency response procedures with library staff  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



 

21 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Adult Services 

 
PROGRAMMING: 

• Spice Club Kit – Gingerbread Spice- Bimonthly 
• Second Saturday Workshop 
• How Decluttering & Downsizing Done Right Can Strengthen Family Connections 
• Redefining Home: A Practical Guide to Decluttering & Rightsizing 

 

Exhibits  
• In the Gallery - Five Artists, Five Perspectives Exhibit & Reception 

 
COMMUNITY OUTREACH: 
Strategic Priority 1: Independent Reading Services 

• Read in Rye: The Glass Pass - Lee Carey 
• Literary Sessions with Mark Schenker: The House of Mirth by Edith Wharton 

(hybrid) 
• Library Book Groups - Cookbook Book Club, Current Events Book Club, Rye 

Readers Book Group, Thursday Afternoon Book Club (hybrid) 
Strategic Priority 4: Community Interest Advancement 

• Winter Birding In the Lower Hudson presented by the Saw Mill River Audubon  
• Rye250: Slavery in My Neighborhood with Howard Husock (hybrid) 
• Rye Storytellers Tellebration 2025 (hybrid) 

 
SPACE BOOKINGS 

• Local History Room – 57 
• Left Study Room – 37 
• Right Study Room -  47 

 
ONE ON ONE APPOINTMENTS 

• Notary Appointments – 19 
• Technology Training - 2 

 

 



 

22 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Teen Services 

PROGRAMMING AND DISPLAYS: 
● Lock-ins are popular with 25 attending in October for the murder mystery party, 

and 40+ projected for Friday’s Annual Gingerbread House Contest.The semi-
annual Babysitting Class had 100% attendance based on registration numbers 
with a lot of buzz from the parents and kids of the community, so it will be 
offered again next year. 

● A collaboration we did with the Wainwright House for cookie decorating had 19 
kids attend and positive feedback from attendees and our collaborator 
coordinator 
 

Strategic Goals 
1. Independent Reading and Reading Drop-off Prevention 
• Current book displays featuring pink and green covers to tie in with the newly 

released “Wicked”. October’s focused on horror, with a range from middle grade to 
older teen levels, including graphic novels. November’s were “leaf through a good 
book” and showcased first in a series as well as popular titles on the shelf. 

• The manga book club starting in January will be another attempt at getting a 
reading and discussion group going to enjoy up and coming manga titles and 
series that are growing in popularity. 

2. Community Interest Advancement 
• I visited the high school and middle school library and ran a virtual escape room 

for them on 11/6, and another visit is planned for the Spring 
• Inclure, an initiative with the Westchester County Government, will be hosting 

mental and physical wellness events for teens starting in January, every other 
week, through March 

Materials 

• Board games continue to circulate well. Replacements for missing pieces/games 
and new games have been added, and the plan for sliding shelves at the front 
desk is still in progress! A plan is being executed this week for transferring 
gaming contents to a separate system of boxes to eliminate in-house loss. The 
collection continues circulating at 99% within the last year.  

 

 



 

23 
 

 

 

 

 
Children’s Services 

 
Community Interest Advancement 

• There is an exciting lineup of activities planned for the holiday school break. DIY 
Holiday Cookie Mix Jars, Polar Express party, Gingerbread Man scavenger hunt, 
slime, and gumdrop tasting!  

 
Independent Reading and Reading Drop-off Prevention 

• The Books and Beyond book club for 3rd-5th graders met at the end of 
November to discuss J vs. K and had 7 children in attendance. 

• The new book club for 1st-2nd graders met in the fall, with a small number of 
attendees. The next meetings will take place in January. Tell your friends! It’s a 
great way for parents and kids to read and spend time together. 

 
Outreach: 

• We had great school visits with CCNS and Rye Presbyterian Nursery School in 
November. We have more school visits scheduled for January and February as 
well. 

Materials 
• 3 American Girl doll kits are now circulating.  

 
Other:  

• We have had great feedback on the new children’s room shelving, and the 
number of series that are available for children to read. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

24 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Building Committee 
Bathroom Renovation Update 

 
Following the October Board meeting, the Building Committee reviewed all the 
proposals, along with the reference feedback Chris collected, and selected AG Premium 
Contracting for the bathroom renovation project. The Executive Committee also 
approved the recommendation, and AG will start work on December 15th.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  



 

25 
 

 

 

 

 
Development Committee  

 
The latest lapsed donor list is here. Please review the list and mark your initials in the 
column highlighted in green next to who you will reach out to, this way we do not 
duplicate efforts.   
 
Additionally, please find some examples of outreach emails & texts you can send to 
friends! Thank you for helping to close the RFRR annual campaign gap! 
 
Email sample: 
 

Subject: Let's support the RFRR Together  
 
Dear ________ 
 
The Rye Free Reading Room's Annual Giving Campaign is happening now, and I hope 
you'll consider joining me in supporting it. Every donation, big or small, makes a real 
difference - from keeping programs for children and teens thriving to 
funding technology and ensuring the library continues to be a welcoming place for all. 
 
I've made my gift, and I'd love for you to join me in keeping this cornerstone of our 
community strong. Together, we can help the Rye Free Reading Room continue to 
inspire, educate, and bring people together. 
 
With gratitude, 
(Your name)  
Rye Free Reading Room Trustee [or exec position] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1xnWECJ8XRINhaCKUeaKHxNhyp_sR-gXXhv1dURnwHHc/edit?usp=sharing
https://friends.ryelibrary.org/fundraising/forms/8NDR96EK


 

26 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Text samples:  
 
Hi! The RFRR means so much to our community - from story hours to programs for all 
ages. Their Annual Giving Campaign is on now, and every gift helps. I donated and hope 
you'll join me in supporting this special place. You can support the library 
here: https://friends.ryelibrary.org/fundraising/forms/8NDR96EK 
 
Hey! The RFRR is such a hub for all of us. Their Annual Giving Campaign makes sure 
programs, books, and resources thrive. Even a small gift makes a big impact. I've 
donated and hope you'll consider donating this year too! You can support the library 
here: https://friends.ryelibrary.org/fundraising/forms/8NDR96EK 
 
Next Steps : Trustees review the lapsed list and not yet given list and contact 
10 friends or acquaintances.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
  

https://friends.ryelibrary.org/fundraising/forms/8NDR96EK
https://friends.ryelibrary.org/fundraising/forms/8NDR96EK


 

27 
 

 

 

 

Heritage Committee 
 
The Rye Free Reading Room Mayoral Award honors an individual with a strong 
connection to Rye for significant contribution to literature and the literary community.  
 
Nathaniel Philbrick is a New York Times bestselling author and sailor. His historical 
research into one of Rye’s most famous visitors has lead him on a journey up and down 
the Post Road, tracing Washington’s defeats and victories. As the 250th Anniversary of 
the Revolutionary War approaches, Philbrick brings to life the stories of Westchester 
and the Sound Shore in 1776.  
 
A regular visitor to Rye, Philbrick share a lifelong love of sailing with his daughter,  
Jennifer Philbrick McArdle, a former Harvard sailing captain, Rye resident, and Rye Free 
Reading Room trustee.  
 
Nathaniel Philbrick is the author of 13 books, including Travels with George : in search of 
Washington and His Legacy, Valient Ambition : Geoge Washington, Benedict Arnold, and 
the Fate of the American Revolution, The Mayflower and the Pilgrim’s New World, and  
Second Wind : a Sunfish Sailor, an Island, and the Voyage That Brought a Family Together. 
 
Nathaniel’s work has been featured in The New York Times Book Review, the Los 
Angeles Times, Vanity Fair, The Wall Street Journal, and The Boston Globe. His media 
appearances include PBS’s American Experience , the Today Show, the Morning Show, 
Dateline, NPR, and C-SPAN. He and his wife Melissa live on Nantucket. 
 
The Mayor’s Award will be presented at the Rye Free Reading Room’s Annual Meeting, 
which will take place on Thursday, February 5th at 7 pm. After a brief business meeting, 
the program will begin at 7:30 pm.  The program will be 40 minutes, with discussion 
between Nathaniel and a moderator, and then a brief Q and A with the audience.  
 
The library will work with Arcade Books, a local bookshop to have copies of Travels with 
George, Valient Ambition, and In the Heart of the Sea available for purchase. 

 

Action: The Board approve the recipient of the 2025 Mayor’s Award.  
 
 
 
 



 

28 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Nominating Committee  
 
The Nominating Committee Chair will present the final slate of officers and trustees for 
the members to vote on at the February 5, 2026 Annual Meeting of the Members.  
Board for consideration. 
 
Action : The Board approve the slate of officers for 2026 
 
Action: The Board approve the slate for the Class of 2029. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

29 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Mission Moments 

It’s not too late to show your support and become a Friend of the Library! 
 
The coziest place in the cold? The library! Enjoy the fire, browse for a book, and check 
out the digital magazine collection from around the world. 
 
Notable Activities 
 
New in 2026 - By popular demand, the Historic Miniature Program has expanded. 
4th and 5th graders 
Once a month on Sunday, 3:30 to 4:30 pm 
 
Mondays in January - A double helping of Cooking with Kids 
Cooking with Kids will be offered 4 times a month, with recipes being repeated. That 
way, kids who miss the first opportunity can join in next week.  
 
Saturday, January 7 at 10:30 am - Bling’s the Thing 
The popular earring making workshop returns, and participants will create one pair of 
earrings for themselves, and make a second pair that will donated to a domestic 
violence shelter. Limited space - registration required  
 
Thursday, January 15 at 7 – Read in Rye : Shaun Zetlin 
Emotional Fitness: Empower Yourself Emotionally Through Exercise. Shaun Zetlin will 
demonstrate a combination of emotional and physical exercises to help you to 
empower yourself emotionally through exercise. 
 
Sunday, February 1 at 3 pm - RR250: Prelude to the Revolution in a New York Town 
Rye resident, Lear Beyer, discusses the unique history of Rye leading up to the 
Revolution. 
 


	Financials10-25.pdf
	Income Expense
	Annual Camp
	Endowment
	Combined

	Financials11-25.pdf
	Income Expense
	Annual Camp
	Endowment
	Combined




